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Independent Auditors' Report
The Board of Directors
LANNER ELECTRONICS INC.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of LANNER ELECTRONICS INC. and
subsidiaries (the Group) as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, and the related consolidated statements of
comprehensive income as well as the consolidated statements of changes in stockholders' equity and of cash
flows for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014. These consolidated financial statements are the
responsibility of the Group's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audits. The financial statements of certain subsidiaries were audited by other
auditors, whose reports were finished to us. The total assets of those consolidated subsidiaries mentioned above
amounted to $601,388 thousand and $492,390 thousand, constituting 14% and 13% of the consolidated totals
assets as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively. The net operating revenue for the years then ended
December 31, 2015 and 2014 amounted to $1,276,741 thousand and $1,139,358 thousand, respectively,
constituting 23% and 25% of the consolidated net operating revenue.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the "Regulations Governing Auditing and Certification of Financial
Statements by Certified Public Accountants" and the generally accepted auditing standards in the Republic of
China. Those regulations and standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall consolidated financial statement presentations. We
believe that our audits and the reports of the other auditors provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, based on our audits and the reports of the other auditors, the consolidated financial statements
referred to in the first paragraph present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial positions of
the Group as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, and the consolidated results of its operations and its cash flows
for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, in conformity with the "Regulations Governing the
Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers" and the International Financial Reporting Standards,
International Accounting Standards, IFRIC Interpretations and SIC Interpretations endorsed by the R.O.C.
Financial Supervisory Commission.



kPG

We have also audited the standalone financial statements of LANNER ELECTRONICS INC. for the years
ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, on which we have issued a modified unqualified audit report.

P4

KPMG
March 23, 2016

Note to Readers

The accompanying consolidated financial statements are intended only to present the financial position, results of operations, and cash flows in
accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards approved by the R.O.C. Financial Supervisory Commission. The standards, procedures
and practices to review such financial statements are those generally accepted and applied in the Republic of China.

The auditors' report and the accompanying financial statements are the English translation of the Chinese version prepared and used in the Republic of
China. If there is any conflict between, or any difference in the interpretation of, the English and Chinese language auditors' report and financial
statements, the Chinese version shall prevail.



1 IFoRLT G0 6LSISTF  §
¥ T650:0C  ¥S  6OPEOLE
T Ty T  EEes
T 0igle6! €5 OFIiste
RTTAT = TeGel
8T TRTRLID 61 BO0PEL
¥ T6ES ST e
- sTTT - stEe

¥ L89TEL v 65091

ol hE¥et T SEreov
¥ FITS06 TC BO0SLE
9% SESSO0L1  9F  OROFEG |
¥ st ¥ TOCELI
=B — e

1 1L§°4T ! 891'62

1 Divos 1 1$2'80

! 62L0E 1 188°7€

1 he'Ty 1 [l

- - R~ 4

T EISEEs] T SILrOIgt
T Teriol T el

L EpRssT T o[ A4

- arsL [ 114

7l TGE'SEY 4 1 111

- f0g'9l 1 122§

- 0e - 08Ky

Ll S8s'tTe 61 Otl'ste

= Le8l - 996"

£ zer'tol 1 r0%Tk §
o, junowry o umowmy
P10T 1€ PQWING G107 '€ 12qWINE

&ymba sepjoynaos pue SIS [WI0L 008 ZTPOPLE U0 GLSLBLP §
£ynba 1epoL - -
53531330 Sugjje.uod-uoN
Kupdwory ay3 jo s1apjoyaauys o) 3yqeinglays Aunba [ejo),
sucnjezado uSlai0) 10) SPRUIMIP UCHIEJSLBL SIUALUSIES [BloURML]
:fynba yi10

sTunrea paujei pareudoaddeun)
sAresal [e1oadg
sas3s9) [8da]
sTuguiea paurersy
sn)dins [epds)
%0015 UOLUIWIOD)
(o pue ()9 (Mo (B9 sejou) fuwdwoD 313 J0 SIIpIOYIeYS 0) 3|qmmqlape Apnbg
sapaE 1eieL
SIYIQE] JUBLND-LUOL [EIOL
S9ULIgE]] JULNI-UOU 1Y

({19 =10u) sSp1qsy uoisuad paruasy 1€ 1¥8'Ls1Y 3T HLEGET']
{{Dg m10u) san11qes| Xe) SW0dLL PALIDJIT BRI %% = P9T
{(u)5 210u) anuaast paatajep uua-Suo I 786'PE | 80LYS
(g pum (3)9 se10u) s30ep uua)-Fuor] - ovbEl - ebE'Rl
((S) s1ou) ywanma-wou —sso| 10 Wjoud yFnoiy) snfea 15 12 saNLIGR]] [BOURUL] 0E  $BETEOL'| LT &9°LSI')
1831 {tq B1) JUSLINI-UON] - 000°1 - 0o0°|
SR U300 0L,
(1) arou) saurqey WwaLma Y0 9 TEs8ssz  ¢L  SOC8WT
((8)y s10u) uoipod Juauns Jjqeded spuog T &cac 1 G696t
(6 Pue (4)g s2j0u) JuaLND —SBOISIACI] z 96T T 560'89
({0} pue “Gi)o (19 sejou) sejquded a4i0 - 90f'T [ BEI'LE
(N3 20u) sapiqe)) XB) UM LT REL'RTO EE ZE6'SIF
(2 mou) sapund pajesa o) snp ajqeAed sjuncaoy - ST - 919
aqeded smosy $T  TLK'IS6 ST 199'190°
(g pur ())g s3jou) warpod Jwauns ‘siqap uual-Juer] 1 0¥0'61 - 908l
(g P (5)9 se10u) $199p ULAL-LOLS £l OZLIgY ol LTy §
SaIIq )| JueAan)
£ynb3 s1apjoyyao)g pue sapiiqel] o, junowy ”, nowWy

$107 1€ quasaq  SI07 *L£ PPQwWq

(s1ej[op uEmBl MmN JO SpuEsnON) ul passatdxy)
$T0T PUE STOT ‘(€ LaquIada(y
£)29Y§ 2IUBIEF PIIEPIIOSUC))
SHTEVIAISANS ANV "DNI SOINOULDTTI YINNVL

"SJUSLLISIEIS |BIOURUL PIJEPI[OSUOS A1) 0] $610U StAurdincoos 238

LEHTRETES

SJISSH JUILINI-UCU |8}O],
{¢ 210U} 519558 JUILIND-UCU SAYID
(Do a10u) 519558 XB) AWCIL] pAIHIQ
wawdinba 10y sjuawledary
(g pus (3)g sajou) jusudinbo puy 1umid faadory
((P)9 Qlou) JUILNI-LLIU —IS02 JB PILLIED S]OSEE [BJIUBULL
I5JASSY JUDALINI-UOKN]
FIS5E JUALLIND (B}0],
$19558 BN LBYID
sjuswiedalg
{8 P10U)IURIIND ~- 5]I5ST [GIDUBUE) 33Y1O
{(2)9 s10u) saLOUAAL]
{(q)g a10u) sa[qEAI31 YO
((q)o s10u) 13U ‘3|qeAL3D31 SJUNOITY
((q)g 210u) 15U *31qRAIFO SHION
((2)9 2100) sjua[eAINbS YSBD pUR YsED)

:5)a558 JuaLIny

51358y



LANNER ELECTRONICS INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income
For the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014

(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars)

Operating revenue {notes 6(n) and 7)
Operating costs (notes 6(c), 6(k), 6(i), 6(k), 6(I), 6(0) and 7)
Gross profit, net
Operating expenses (notes 6(b), 6(i), 6(k), 6(1), 6(0) and 7):
Selling expenses
Administrative expenses
Research and development expenses
Total operating expenses
Operating profit
Non-operating income and expenses (notes 6(d), 6(g), 6(p) and 7):
Other income
Other gains and losses
Financial costs
Total non-operating income and expenses
Net income before tax
Less: income tax expenses (note 6(j))
Net income
Other comprehensive income (loss):
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans
Income tax benefit (expense) related to items that will not be reclassified subsequently
Total Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Jtems that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
Financial statements translation differences for foreign operations
Income tax expense relating to components of other comprehensive income (loss)
Total Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax
Total comprehensive income
Net income attributable to;
Shareholders of the parent company
Non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive income attributable to:

Shareholders of the parent company
Non-controlling interests

Basi¢ earnings per share (in New Taiwan dollars) (note 6(m))
Diluted earnings per share (in New Taiwau dollars) (note 6(m))

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.

2015 2014
Amoupt % Amount %
$ 5,439,499 100 4,535,864 100
3.877.383 _ 71 3.257.419 _T12
1,562,116 _ 29 1278445 _ 28
446,070 8 413,212 9
348,103 7 243512 5
_ 426525 _ 8 _ 345216 _ 8
1,220,698 23 _ 1,001,940 _ 22
341418 __ 6 276505 __ 6
100,479 2 72,281 1
(5,834) - 36,452 1
(8,116) _ - (9.187) _ -
86,529 _ 2 99546 __ 2
427,947 8 376,051 8
08,831 _ 2 64017 __ 1
329.116 _ 6 312,034 7
(1,662) - 1,997 -
(1.662) - 1997 -
(12,352) - 19,811 -
12.352) - 19811 _ -
(14014 - - 21.808 _ -
§ 315102 =6 333842 __7
§ 318,404 6 303,717 7
10712 _ - 8317 -
$ 329,116 =___6, 312,034 =7
$ 305,531 6 324,085 7
9.571 _-_ 9757 _ -
$ 315,102 =6_ 333,842 =7
$ 3.29 3.23
) 3.04 2.99
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LANNER ELECTRONICS INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

For the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014

{expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars)

Cash flows from operating activities:
Consolidated net income before tax
Adjustments:

Adjustments to reconcile profit and loss
Depreciation
Bad debt provision

Net loss (gain) on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Interest expenses

Interest income

Remuneration cost of employee stock options

Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment, net
Total adjustments to reconcile profit and loss

Changes in assets / liabilities relating to operating activities:

Net changes in operating assets:
Notes receivable
Accounts receivable
Other receivable
Inventories
Prepayments
Other current assets
Other financial assets
Total changes in operating assets, net
Net changes in operating liabilities:
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Notes payable
Accounts payable
Accounts payable —related parties
Other payable
Provisions
Other current liabilities
Net defined benefit liabilities
Long-term deferred revenue
Total changes in operating liabilities, net
Total changes in operating assets / liabilities, net
Total adjustments
Cash provided by operating activities
Interest income recejved
Interest paid
Income tax paid
Net cash provided by operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities:
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment
Increase in other financial assets
Increase in other non-current assets
Increase in prepayments for equipment
Net cash used in investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities:
Decrease in short-term borrowings
Repayment of long-term debts
Increase (decrease) in other non-current liabilities
Cash dividends paid
Exercise of employee share options
Purchase of treasury stock
Net cash vused in financing activities
Effects of changes in exchange rates
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.

2015 2014
427,947 376,051
74,994 65,716
572 325
42 (142)
3,116 9,187
(1,783) (1,340)
3,612 2,908
375 2,084
85,928 78,738
6,534 (7,147)
(110,725) (139,861)
1,799 3,264
(387,254) (97,192
4,141 (43,792)
(9,130) (6,716)
(28) (28)
(494.663) (291472
- (242)
- (169)
205,545 237,586
6,270 210
113,612 153,458
14,790 1,426
20,361 617
(65) 151
1,526 11,941
368,039 404,978
{126.624) 113,506
(40,696) 192.244
387,251 568,205
1,782 1,339
(2,910) (9,260
{66.208) (86.766)
319,915 473,608
(116,976) (73,095)
2,533 1,283
(34,804) -
(2,240) (&9)
(18,343) {13,378)
(169.830) {85.279)
(50,000) (147,501)
(1,914) (1,819)
(216) 619
(136,218) (121,750)
15,835 16,076
(25.678) -
(198,191 (254,375)
(21.187) 17,457
(69,293) 151,411
481,720 330,309
412,427 481,720
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LANNER ELECTRONICS INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2015 and 2014

(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars unless otherwise stated)

Organization and Business Scope

LANNER ELECTRONICS INC. (the Company) was incorporated on October 30, 1986, under the laws of
the Republic of China (ROC). The Company and its subsidiaries (the Group) are mainly engaged in the
manufacturing and trading of computer peripheral equipment, computer software design and development
services, and related information processing trade business.

Financial Statements Authorization Date and Authorization Process
These consolidated financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on March 23, 2016.
New Standards and Interpretations Not Yet Adopted

(a) The effect of the new announcements and revisions of the standards and interpretations endorsed by
the Financial Supervisory Commission ("FSC")

The Group has adopted to prepare financial reports according to IFRSs 2013 endorsed by the FSC
from 2015 onward (not including IFRS 9 Financial Instruments). A summary of the new
announcements, revisions, and amendments of standards and interpretations which were announced
by the International Accounting Standards Board ("IASB") is as follows:

New announcements/revisions/amendments of standards and Effective date per
interpretations TIASB
Amendment to IFRS 1: Limited Exemption from Comparative IFRS 7 July 1,2010

Disclosures for First-time Adopters
Amendment to JFRS 1: Severe Hyperinflation and Removal of Fixed Dates for ~ July 1, 2011

First-time Adopters
Amendment to IFRS 1: Government Loans January 1, 2013
Amendment to IFRS 7: Disclosures — Transfers of Financial Assets July 1, 2011
Amendment to IFRS 7: Disclosures — Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial =~ January 1, 2013
Liabilities
IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements January 1, 2013
(subsidiaries
effective on
January 1, 2014)
IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements January 1, 2013
IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities January 1, 2013
IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement January 1, 2013
Amendment to IAS 1: Presentation of Items of Other Comprehensive Income July 1, 2012
Amendment to IAS 12: Deferred Tax: Recovery of Underlying Assets January 1, 2012
Revision to IAS 19 Employee Benefits January 1, 2013
Revision to IAS 27 Separate Financial Statements January 1, 2013
Amendment to IAS 32: Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities January 1, 2014
IFRIC 20 Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface Mine January 1, 2013

(Continued)
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LANNER ELECTRONICS INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to the Consolidated Finanecial Statements

Except for the following, the Group assessed that adopting IFRSs 2013 will not have significant
impacts on the consolidated financial statements.

i)

Amendments to IAS 1 —Presentation of Items of Other Comprehensive Income

According to the amendments to JAS 1, items of other comprehensive income will be grouped
into two categories: (a) items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss; and (b)
items that will be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss when specific conditions are met. In
addition, income tax on items of other comprehensive income is also required to be aflocated on
the same basis. The aforementioned allocation basis will not be strictly enforced prior to the
adoption of the amendments. The Group has also revised the disclosure of other periods.

IFRS 13 —Fair Value Measurement

IFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance for fair value measurements and disclosures
about fair value measurements. It defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair
value, and requires disclosures about fair value measurements. According to the ruling, the
Group has disclosed its relative fair value information (please refer to note 6(q)) and also
complied with the ruling of the postponement. Therefore, the Group is not required to disclose
any additional information in other periods. The extension of the adoption, however, will not
have any significant impacts on the fair value measurement items of assets and liabilities.

New standards and interpretations not yet endorsed by the FSC

The new standards and amendments issued by the IASB that may have an impact to the consolidated
financial statements as of the reporting date but not yet endorsed by the FSC are summarized as

follows:

Effective date

New standards and amendments and interpretations per IASB
TFRS 9 "Financial Instruments" January 1, 2018
Amended IFRS 10 and IAS 28 "Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Effective date to
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture" be determined by
IASB

Amended TFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 28 " Investment Entities-Applying the January 1, 2016
Consolidation Exception”
Amendments to IFRS 11 "Acquisitions of an Interest in Joint Operation" January 1, 2016
IFRS 14 "Regulatory Deferral Accounts" - January 1, 2016
IFRS 15 "Revenue from Contracts with Customers" January 1, 2018
IFRS 16 "Leases” January 1, 2019
Amended IAS 1 "Disclosure Initiative" January 1, 2016
Amended to TAS 7 "Disclosure Initiative" January 1, 2017
Amended to IAS 12 "Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealized January 1, 2017

Losses"

(Continued)



3
LANNER ELECTRONICS INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Effective date
New standards and amendments and interpretations per IASB

Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38 "Clarification of Acceptable Methods of January 1, 2016
Depreciation and Amortization"

Amendments to [AS 16 and IAS 41"Bearer Plants" January 1, 2016
Amendments to IAS 19 "Defined Benefit Plans: Employee Contributions™ July 1, 2014
Amendments to IAS 27 "Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements" January 1, 2016
Amendments to JAS 36 "Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-financial Japuary 1, 2014
Assets”

Amendments to JAS 39 "Novation of Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge January 1, 2014

Accounting”

Annual improvements to IFRSs 2010-2012 cycle and to IFRSs 2011-2013 cycle  July 1, 2014
Annual improvements to IFRSs 2012-2014 cycle January 1, 2016
IFRIC 21 "Levies" January 1, 2014

The Group is currently evaluating the impact of the abovementioned standards and amendments on
the Group's financial position and operating results. Any related impact will be disclosed when the
evaluation is completed.

(4) Significant Accounting Policies

The consolidated financial statements are the English translation of the Chinese version prepared and used
in the Republic of China. If there is any conflict between, or any difference in the interpretation of, the
English and Chinese language financial statements, the Chinese version shall prevail.

The significant accounting policies presented in the financial statements are summarized as follows.
Except for those described otherwise, the accounting policies have been applied consistently to all periods
presented in these financial statements, and have been applied consistently to the balance sheet as of
reporting date.

(a) Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Regulations
Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers (the Regulations) and the IFRSs
endorsed by the FSC.

(b) Basis of preparation
1)  Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except for the
following accounts:

i.  Available-for-sale financial instruments measured at fair market value.

{Continued)



4
LANNER ELECTRONICS INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ii. Pension liabilities (and assets) are measured at the fair value of the pension deducted by the
present value of the defined benefit obligations and the effect of the maximum rate which is
mentioned in note 4(i).

Functional and presentation currency

The functional currency of each individual consolidated entity is determined based on the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates. The Group's consolidated financial
statements are presented in New Taiwan dollars, which is Company's functional currency. The
assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated to the Group's functional currency at the
exchange rates at the reporting date. The income and expenses of foreign operations are
translated to the Group's functional currency at the average rate. Foreign currency differences are
recognized in other comprehensive income. All financial information presented in New Taiwan
dollars has been rounded to the nearest thousand.

(c) Basis of consolidation

i)

Principles of preparation of consolidated financial statements

The consolidated financial statements comprise the Company and its subsidiaries. The financial
statements of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control ceases. Losses applicable to the non-controlling
interests in a subsidiary are allocated to the non-controlling interests even if doing so causes the
non-controlling interests to have a deficit balance. '

Intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealized income and expenses arising from
intra-group transactions are eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial statements.

Changes in the Group's ownership interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control
are accounted for as equity transactions.

List of subsidiaries included in the consolidated financial statements

Percentage of

ownership
Name of Name of subsidiary Scope of  December December Note
investor business 31, 2015 31,2014
The Company ~ LANNER ELECTRONICS USA, INC. Trading of 100.00 %  100.00 %
(LANNER (USA)) computer
peripheral
products
The Company ~ LANNER ELECTRONICS (MAURITIUS) Investing 100.00 %  100.00 %
INC. (LANNER (MAURITIUS)}
The Company  LEI TECHNOLOGY CANADA INC, (LEI})  Trading of 100.00 %  100.00 %
computer
peripheral
products
LANNER LANCOM HOLDING CO., LTD. (LANCOM) Investing 100.00 %  100.00 %
(MAURITIUS)
LANCOM Beijing L&S Lancom Platform Tech. Co., Ltd. Trading of 90.91 % 90.91 %
(L&S) computer
peripheral
products

(Continued)
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The Company increased its capital by USD500 thousand (NTD15,020 thousand) in LEI in August
2014.

Foreign currency

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the respective functional currencies of the Group
entities at exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. Monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies at the reporting date are retranslated to the functional currency at the exchange rate at that
date. The foreign currency gain or loss on monetary items is the difference between the amortized cost
in the functional currency at the beginning of the year adjusted for the effective interest and payments
during the year, and the amortized cost in foreign currency translated at the exchange rate at the end
of the year.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are measured at fair value
are retranslated to the functional currency at the exchange rate at the date that the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items in a foreign currency that are measured based on historical cost are
translated using the exchange rate at the date of translation.

Foreign currency differences arising on translation are recognized in profit or loss, except for the
available-for-sale financial assets which are recognized in other comprehensive income.

When the settlement of a monetary item receivable from or payable to a foreign operation is neither
planed nor likely in the foreseeable future, foreign currency gains and losses arising from such items
are considered to form part of a net investment in the foreign operation and are recognized in other
comprehensive income, and presented in the translation reserve in equity.

Classification of current and non-current assets and liabilities

i)  An entity shall classify an asset as current when:
i. It expects to realize the asset, or intends to sell or consume it, in its normal operating cycle;
ii. It holds the asset primarily for the purpose of trading;
iii. It expects to realize the asset within twelve months after the reporting period; or

iv. The asset is cash or a cash equivalent unless the asset is restricted from being exchanged or
used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

An entity shall classify all other assets as non-current.

ii) An entity shall classify a liability as current when:
i. It expects to settle the liability in its normal operating cycle;
ii. It holds the liability primarily for the purpose of trading;

jii. The liability is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period even if
refinancing or a revised repayment plan is arranged between the reporting date and the
issuance date of the financial statements; or

(Continued)
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It does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period. Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the
counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its
classification.

An entity shall classify all other liabilities as non-current.

(f) Cash and cash equivalents

(8)

Cash and cash equivalents comprised cash, cash in banks and short term investments with high
liquidity that are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in their fair value.

The time deposits with maturity of one year or less from the acquisition date are listed in cash and
cash equivalents becanse they are held for the purpose of meeting short-term cash commitments
instead of investment or other purposes. They are also readily convertible to fixed amount of cash,
and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognized when the Group becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instruments.

i)

Financial assets

The Group classifies financial assets as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
available-for-sale financial assets, and loans to other parties and receivabies.

i

il.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

A financial asset is classified in this category if it is acquired principally for the purpose of
selling or repurchasing in the short term. This type of financial asset is measured at fair
value at initial recognition. Attributable transaction costs are recognized in profit or loss as
incurred. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value, and
changes therein, which take into account any dividend and interest income, are recognized
in profit or loss, and are included in non-operating income and expense. Based on previous
experiences, the Group uses trade-date accounting upon acquiring or disposing financial
assets.

Available-for sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are recognized initially at fair value, plus, any directly
attributable transaction cost. Subsequent to initial recognition, they are measured at fair
value, and changes therein, other than impairment losses, interest income calculated using
the effective interest method, dividend income, and foreign currency differences on
available-for-sale debt instruments, are recognized in other comprehensive income and
presented in the fair value reserve in equity. When an investment is derecognized, the gain
or loss accumulated in equity is reclassified to profit or loss, and is included in non-
operating income and expense.

Investments in equity instruments that do not have a quoted market price in an active
market, and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured, are measured at amortized cost,
and are included in financial assets measured at cost.

(Continued)
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Loans to other parties and receivables

Receivables are financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. Receivables comprise trade receivables, other receivables, and other
financial assets-noncurrent. Such assets are recognized initially at fair value, plus, any
directly attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, receivables are
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method, less, any impairment losses
other than insignificant interest on short-term receivables.

Impairment of financial assets

A financial asset is impaired if, and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a
result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a ‘loss
event') and that loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of
the financial asset that can be estimated reliably.

The objective evidence that financial assets are impaired includes default or delinquency by
a debtor, restructuring of an amount due to the Group on terms that the Group would not
consider otherwise, indications that a debtor or issuer will enter bankruptcy, adverse
changes in the payment status of borrowers or issuers, economic conditions that correlate
with defaults, or the disappearance of an active market for a security. In addition, for an
investment in an equity security, a significant or prolonged decline in its fair value below its
cost is accounted for as objective evidence of impairment.

All individually significant receivables are assessed for specific impairment. Receivables
that are not individually significant are collectively assessed for impairment by grouping
together assets with similar risk characteristics. In assessing collective impairment, the
Group uses historical trends of the probability of default, the timing of recoveries, and the
amount of loss incurred, adjusted for management's judgment as to whether current
economic and credit conditions are such that the actual losses are likely to be greater or
lesser than those suggested by historical trends.

An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset measured at cost is calculated as the
difference between its carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash
flows discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such
impairment loss is not reversible in subsequent periods.

An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset is deducted from the carrying amount,
except for trade receivables, for which an impairment loss is reflected in an allowance
account against the receivables. When it is determined a receivable is uncollectible, it is
written off from the allowance account. Any subsequent recovery of receivable written off
is recorded in the allowance account. Changes in the amount of the allowance account are
recognized in profit or loss.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale financial assets are recognized by reclassifying the
losses accumulated in the fair value reserve in equity to profit or loss.

Impairment losses recognized on an available-for-sale equity security are not reversed
through profit or loss. Any subsequent recovery in the fair value of an impaired available-
for-sale equity security is recognized in other comprehensive income, and accumulated in
other equity.

(Continued)
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If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of an impaired available-for-sale debt security
increases and the increase can be related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognized, then the impairment loss is reversed, with the amount of
the reversal recognized in profit or loss.

Impairment losses and recoveries are recognized in profit or loss. Recovery and loss on
doubtful debts of account receivables is included in operating expense, others are included
in non-operating income and expense.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognizes financial assets when the contractual rights of the cash inflow
from the asset are terminated, or when the group transfers substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial assets.

i) Financial liabilities

i

Classification of debt or equity

Debt or equity instruments issued by the Group are classified as financial liabilities or
equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual agreement.

Equity instruments refer to surplus equities of the assets after the deduction of all the debts
for any contracts. Equity instruments issued are recognized as the amount of consideration
received, less, the direct cost of issuing.

Compound financial instruments issued by the Group comprise those that can be converted
to share capital at the option of the holder when the number of shares to be issued is fixed.

The liability component of a compound financial instrument is recognized initially at the
fair value of a similar liability that does not have an equity conversion option. The equity
component is recognized initially at the difference between the fair value of the compound
financial instrument as a whole and the fair value of the liability component. Any directly
attributable transaction costs are allocated to the liability and equity components in
proportion to their initial carrying amounts.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the liability component of a compound financial
instrument is measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. The equity
component of a compound financial instrument is not re-measured subsequent to initial
recognition.

Interest, gains or losses related to financial liabilities are recognized in profit or loss, and
recorded under non-operating income and expenses.

Upon conversion, the financial liability shall be reclassified as equity, and no gain or loss
will be recognized.

(Continued)
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ii. Financial lability at fair value through profit or loss

Available-for-sale financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value, plus, any
directly attributable transaction cost. Subsequent to initial recognition, they are measured at
fair value, and changes therein, other than impairment losses, interest income calculated
using the effective interest method, dividend expense, and foreign currency differences on
available-for-sale debt instruments, are recognized in other comprehensive expense and
presented in the fair value reserve in equity. When an investment is derecognized, the gain
or loss accumulated in equity is reclassified to profit or loss, and is included in non-
operating income and expense.

1ii. Other financial liabilities

Financial liabilities not classified as held-for-trading or designated as at fair value through
profit or loss, which comprise loans and borrowings, and trade and other payables, are
measured at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction cost at the time of initial
recognition. Subsequent to initial recognition, they are measured at amortized cost
calculated using the effective interest method. Interest expense not capitalized as capital
cost is recognized in profit or loss, and is included in non-operating income and expense.

iv. Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligation expires or has
been discharged or cancelled. The difference between the carrying amount of a financial
liability removed and the consideration paid (including any non-cash assets transferred or
liabilities assumed) is recognized in profit or loss, and is included in non-operating income
and expense.

v.  Offsetting of financial assets and habilities

The Group presents financial assets and liabilities on a net basis when the Group has the
legally enforceable rights to offset and intends to settle such financial assets and liabilities
on a net basis or to realize the assets and settle the liabilities simuitaneously.

(h) Inventories

The cost of inventories consists of alf costs of purchase, costs of conversion, and other costs incurred
in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. The cost of inventories includes an
appropriate share of fixed production overhead based on normal capacity and allocated variable
production overhead based on actual output. However, unallocated fixed production overhead arising -
from lower or idle capacity is recognized in cost of goods sold during the period. If actual capacity is
higher than normal capacity, fixed production overhead should be allocated based on actual capacity.
The method of valuing inventories is the weighted-average method.

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost or net realizable value. Net realizable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of completion and
selling expenses at the end of the period. When the cost of inventories is higher than the net
realizable value, inventories are written down to net realizable value, and the write-down amount is
charged to current year's cost of goods sold. If net realizable value increases in the future, the cost of
inventories is reversed within the original write-down amount, and such reversal is treated as a
reduction of cost of goods sold.

{Continued)
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(i} Property, plant and equipment

)

iii)

Recognition and measurement

Proﬁerty, plant and equipment are measured at cost , less, accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributed to the
acquisition of the asset, and any borrowing cost that is eligible for capitalization.

Each part of an item of property, plant and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to
the total cost of the item shall be depreciated separately, unless the useful life and the
depreciation method of a significant part of an item of property, plant and equipment are the
same as the useful life and depreciation method of another significant part of that same item.

The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment shail
be determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying
amount of the item, and it shall be recognized as non-operating income and expense.

Subsequent cost

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only when it is probable that the future economic benefits
associated with the expenditure will flow to the Group. The carrying amount of those parts that
are replaced is derecognized. Ongoing repairs and maintenance are expensed as incurred.

Depreciation

The depreciable amount of an asset is determined after deducting its residual amount, and it shall
be allocated on a systematic basis over its useful life. Items of property, plant and equipment
with the same useful life may be grouped in determining the depreciation charge. The remainder
of the items may be depreciated separately. The depreciation charge for each period shall be
recognized in profit or loss.

Land has an unlimited useful life and therefore is not depreciated.

The estimated useful lives for the current and comparative years of significant items of property,
plant and equipment are as follows:

Buildings 20~50 years
Machinery equipment 3~9 years
Other equipment 2.5~24 years

Depreciation methods, useful lives, and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date. If
expectations differ from the previous estimates, the change is accounted for as a change in an
accounting estimate.

(i) Impairment—non-financial assets

With regard to non-financial assets (other than inventories and deferred tax assets), the Group
assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is any indication that an impairment loss
has occurred, and estimates the recoverable amount for assets with an indication of impairment. If it is
not possible to determine the recoverable amount for the individuval asset, then the Group will have to
determine the recoverable amount for the asset's cash-generating unit.

(Continued)
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The recoverable amount for an individual asset or a cash-generating unit is the higher of its fair value
less costs to sell or its value in use. If, and only if, the recoverable amount of an asset is less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset shall be reduced to its recoverable amount. That
reduction is an impairment loss. An impairment loss shall be recognized immediately in profit or loss.

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is any indication that an
impairment loss recognized in prior periods for an asset other than goodwill may no longer exist or
may have decreased. If any such indication exists, the entity shall estimate the recoverable amount of
that asset. Impairment loss is reversed if, and only if, there has been a change in the estimates used to
determine the asset's recoverable amount, increasing the individual asset's or cash-generating unit's
carrying amount to its estimated recoverable amount. The reversal of an impairment loss of an
individual asset or cash-generating unit cannot exceed the carrying amount of the individual asset or
cash-generating unit, less any depreciation or amortization, had it not recognized an impairment loss.

Provisions

A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash
flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects the current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognized as finance cost.

A provision for warranties is recognized when the underlying products or services are sold. The
provision is based on historical warranty data and a weighting of all possible outcomes against their
associated probabilities.

Treasury stock

Under the cost method, the treasury stock account is debited for the cost of the Group's shares
purchased. When the disposal price of treasury stock is greater than the cost, the difference is
credited to capital surplus—treasury stock; otherwise, the excess of the cost over the price is debited
to capital surplus generated from similar treasury stock transactions. If the capital surplus—treasury
stock account is insufficient to cover the excess of the cost over the price, retained earnings should be
debited for the remaining amount. The book value of each share of treasury stock is equal to its
weighted-average cost and is calculated by each group according to the reason for purchase.

When treasury stock is retired, capital surplus and common stock are debited according to the ratio of
retiring treasury stock to total issued stock. When the book value of the retiring treasury stock is
higher than the sum of its par value and capital surplus, the difference is debited to capital surplus
generated from similar treasury stock transactions. If the capital surplus —treasury stock account is
insufficient to cover the difference, retained earnings should be debited for the remaining amount.
When the book value of the retiring treasury stock is lower than the sum of its par value and capital
surplus, the difference is credited to capital surplus generated from similar treasury stock transactions.

(Continued)
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(m) Revenue

()

Revenue from the sale of goods in the course of ordinary activities is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable, net of returns, trade discounts, and volume rebates. Revenue is
recognized when persuasive evidence exists, usually in the form of an executed sales agreement, that
the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the customer, recovery of the
consideration is probable, the associated costs and possible return of goods can be estimated reliably,
there is no continuing management involvement with the goods, and the amount of revenue can be
measured reliably. If it is probable that discounts will be granted and the amount can be measured
reliably, then the discount is recognized as a reduction of revenue as the sales are recognized.
Revenue is deferred and and realized at execution if it can be distinguished by after-sale services;
relative cost is recognized at execution as well.

The timing of the transfers of risks and rewards varies depending on the individual terms of the sales
agreement. For export transactions, transfer occurs upon loading the goods onto the relevant carrier at
the port; however, for sales in the domestic market, transfer usually occurs when the product is
received at the customer's warehouse.

Employee benefits
1)  Defined contribution plans

Obligations for contributions to defined contribution pension plans are recognized as an
employee benefit expense in profit or loss in the periods during which services are rendered by
employees.

ii} Defined benefit plans

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan.
The Group's net obligation in respect of defined benefit pension plans is calculated separately for
each plan by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have eamned in return for
their service in the current and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine its present
value. Any unrecognized past service costs and the fair value of any plan assets are deducted.
The discount rate is the yield at the reporting date on government bonds that have maturity dates
approximating the terms of the Group's obligations and that are denominated in the same
currency in which the benefits are expected to be paid.

The calculation is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit
method. When the calculation results in a benefit to the Group, the recognized asset is limited to
the total of the present value of economic benefits available in the form of any future refunds
from the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan. In order to calculate the present
value of economic benefits, consideration is given to any minimum funding requirements that
apply to any plan in the Group. An economic benefit is available to the Group if it is realizable
during the life of the plan, or on settlement of the plan liabilities.

When the benefits of a plan are improved, the portion of the increased benefit relating to past
service by employees is recognized immediately in profit or loss.

(Continued)
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Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability (asset), which comprise (1) actuarial gains
and losses, (2) the return on plan assets (excluding interest) and (3) the effect of the asset ceiling
(if any, excluding interest), are recognized immediately in other comprehensive income. The
Group can reclassify the amounts recognized in other comprehensive income to retained
earnings.

iii) Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are
expensed as the related service is provided.

A liability is recognized for the amount expected to be paid under short-term cash bonus or
profit-sharing plans if the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount
as a result of past service provided by the employee, and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

Share-based payment

The grant-date fair value of share-based payment awards granted to employees is recognized as
employee expenses, with a corresponding increase in equity, over the period that the employees
become unconditionally entitled to the awards. The amount recognized as an expense is adjusted to
reflect the number of awards whose related service and non-market performance conditions are
expected to be met, such that the amount ultimately recognized as an expense is based on the number
of awards that meet the related service and non-market performance conditions at the vesting date.

For share-based payment awards with non-vesting conditions, the grant-date fair value of the share-
based payment is measured to reflect such conditions, and there is no true-up for differences between
expected and actual outcomes.

The fair value of the amount payable to employees in respect of share appreciation rights, which are
settled in cash, is recognized as an expense with a corresponding increase in liabilities over the period
that the employees become unconditionally entitled to payment. The liability is re-measured at each
reporting date and settlement date. Any changes in the fair value of the liability are recognized as
personnel expenses in profit or loss.

Income tax

Income tax expenses include both current taxes and deferred income taxes. Except for expenses
related to business combinations or recognized directly in equity or other comprehensive income, all
current and deferred income taxes shall be recognized in profit or loss.

Current taxes include tax payables and tax deduction receivables on taxable gains (losses) for the year
calculated using the statutory tax rate on the reporting date or the actual legislative tax rate, as well as
tax adjustments related to prior years.

Deferred income taxes arise due to temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their respective tax bases. Deferred income taxes shall
not be recognized for the below exceptions:

i)  Assets and liabilities that are initially recognized but are not related to the business combination
and have no effect on net income or taxable gains (losses) during the transaction.

ii) Temporary differences arising from equity investments in subsidiaries or joint ventures where
there is a high probability that such temporary differences will not reverse.

(Continued)
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iii) Initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities shall be measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply
to the period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled based on tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities may be offset against each other if the following criteria are
met:

i)  The entity has the legal right to settle tax assets and liabilities on a net basis; and
ii) The taxing of deferred income tax assets and liabilities fulfill one of the below scenarios:
i.  levied by the same taxing authority; or

il. levied by different taxing authorities, but where each such authority intends to settle tax
assets and liabilities (where such amounts are significant) on a net basis every year of the
period of expected asset realization or debt liquidation, or where the timing of asset
realization and debt liquidation is matched.

A deferred income tax asset should be recognized for the carry-forward of unused tax losses, unused
tax credits, and deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the unused tax losses, unused tax credits, and deductible
temporary differences can be utilized. Such unused tax losses, unused tax credits, and deductible
temporary differences shall also be re-evaluated every year on the financial reporting date, adjusted
based on the probability that future taxable profit will be available against which the unused tax
losses, unused tax credits, and deductible temporary differences can be utilized.

Earnings per share

The Group discloses the Company's basic and diluted earnings per share attributable to ordinary
equity holders of the Company. The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the profit
attributable to the ordinary shareholders of the Company divided by the weighted-average number of
ordinary shares outstanding. The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on the profit
attributable to ordinary sharcholders of the Company, divided by the weighted-average number of
ordinary shares outstanding after adjustment for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.
The weighted-average number of common shares outstanding is adjusted retroactively for the increase
in common shares outstanding from stock issuance arising from the capitalization of retained
earnings, or additional paid-in capital.

When computing diluted earnings per share with regards to employee bonuses in the form of stock,
the closing price at the balance sheet date is used as the basis of computation in the number of shares
to be issued. When computing diluted earnings per share prior to the following year's sharcholders'
meeting, the effect of dilution from these potential stocks is taken into consideration.

Operating segments

An operating segment is a component of the Group that engages in business activities from which it
may earn revenues and incur expenses (including revenues and expenses relating to transactions with
other components of the Group). Operating results of the operating segment are regularly reviewed by
the Group's chief operating decision maker to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the
segment and assess its performance. Each operating segment consists of standalone financial
information.

(Continued)
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(5) Significant Accounting Judgments and Sources of Estimation and Uncertainty

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with the IFRSs endorsed by the FSC
requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of the
accounting policies and the reported amount of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

Management will continually review the estimates and basic assumptions. Changes in accounting estimates
will be recognized in the period of change and the future period of their impact.

For information about critical judgments in applying accounting policies that have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognized in these consolidated financial statements, please refer to the following
notes:

(a) Note 6(c)—Inventory

(b) Note 6(h)—Provision

(c) Note 6(i)—Employee benefits
(6) Description of Significant Accounts

(2) Cash and cash equivalents

December 31, December 31,

2015 2014
Cash $ 1,780 973
Working capital &0 80
Cash in banks 141,828 244,939
Checking deposits 2,192 3,141
Time deposits 8,193 7,905
Foreign currency deposits 258,354 224 682
Cash and cash equivalents per consolidated statements of $ 412,427 481.720

cash flow

Please refer to note 6(q) for the interest rate risk and the fair value sensitivity analysis of the financial
assets and liabilities of the Group.

(b) Notes and accounts receivable and other receivables

December 31, December 31,
2015 2014
Notes receivable 3 12,506 19,040
Accounts receivable 1,067,195 956,470
Other receivables 646 2,445
Less: allowance for impairment 5,554 4,998
S 1,074,793 972,957

(Continued)
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The Group has not provided the notes and accounts receivable and other receivables as collateral or

factored them for cash.

The aging analyses that were past due but not impaired were as follows:

December 31, December 31,
2015 2014
Past due 1~30 days $ 75,355 84,727
Past due 31~90 days 38,288 79,571
Past due over 90 days 13.353 526
$ 126,996 164,824

The movement in the allowance for impairment with respect to notes and accounts receivable and

other receivables were as follows:

Individually Collectively
assessed assessed

impairment impairment Total
Balance at January 1, 2015 $ 4,998 - 4,993
Impairment loss recognized 572 - 572
Effect of changes in exchange rates (16) - (16)
Balance at December 31, 2014 S 5,554 - 5,554

Individunally Collectively

assessed assessed

impairment impairment Total
Balance at January 1, 20614 3 5,158 - 5,158
Impairment loss recognized 325 - 325
Written-off in current period (557 - (557)
Effect of changes in exchange rates 72 - 72
Balance at December 31, 2015 $ 4,998 - 4,998
Inventories
The components of the Group's inventories were as follows:

December 31, " December 31,
2015 2014

Merchandise h 3,139 3,763
Finished goods 695,068 458,660
Work in process 270,031 195,445
Raw material 447,754 370.870
Total $ 1.415,992 1,028,738

(Continued)
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Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Hence, the Group makes
judgment and estimates which shortens the life cycles of electronic products, the net realizable value
of inventory for financial statement. Due to the rapid technology change, which shortens the life
cycles of electronic products, the Group assessed the financial statement decrease to net realizable
value of inventory at cost which is caused by normal wear and tear, obsolescence or no market value
of the amount and cost of inventory write-downs to net realizable value. Valuation of the inventory is
based according to the estimated future demand for its products. Hence, there is a possibility for the

valuation to have a significant fluctuation.

As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, the Group's inventories are not pledged as collateral.

Aside from charging operating costs through the ordinary sale of inventories, other gains and losses

directly recorded under operating costs in the years 2015 and 2014 are as follows:

2015 2014
Loss on market value of inventory $ 28,612 12,532
Loss from scrapped inventory 12,617 4212
Loss on physical count 1,888 -
Total S 43,117 16,744
Financial assets carried at cost—noncuirent
Stockholding Investment
rate % cost Amount
December 31, 2015
Alliance III venture Capital Corp. 1.00 § 1,000 1,000
Stockholding Investment
rate % cost Amount
December 31, 2014
Alliance III venture Capital Corp 1.00 8 1,000 1,000
Hua Pian Xhong Xin (Beijing) Techology Ltd 19.84 12,148 -
Total ’ $ 13,148 1,000

The Group has assessed the recoverable amount of the investment on Hua Dian (Beijing) Technology
Ltd. is less than the book value. Therefore, the Group has recognized the entire investment as

impairment loss. Further, the Group disposed the entire investment in August 2015.

(Continued)
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(e) Property, plant and equipment

®

The cost, depreciation, and impairment of the property, plant and equipment of the Group were as
follows:

Qther Construction
Land Buildings Machinery equipment  in progress Tatal
Cost or deemed cost;
Balance at January 1, 2015 3 500,420 458,089 127,689 257,935 2,199 1,346,332
Additions - 2,353 5,253 109,370 - 116,976
Disposals - - (113) {12,716) - (12,829)
Reclassification - 231 - 13,440 @3n 13,440
Effect of changes in exchange rates 1.070 1,704 85 (1,584) 73 1,348
Balance at December 31, 2015 $ 501,490 462,377 132,914 366,445 2,041 1,465,267
Balance at January 1, 2014 $ 498,742 450,483 123 486 199,919 923 1,273,553
Additions - - 8,337 63,588 1,170 73,095
Disposals - - (4,858) (9,133) - (13,991)
Reclassification - 5,131 244 1,887 - 7,262
Effect of changes in exchange rates 1,678 2475 480 1,674 106 6413
Balance at December 31, 2014 $ 500,420 458,089 127,689 257,935 2,199 1,346,332
Depreciation and impairment loss:
Balance at January I, 2015 5 - 53,676 70,090 119,181 - 242,947
Depreciation ‘ - 12,348 18,617 44029 - 74,994
Disposal - - 13) (9,908) - (9,921)
Effect of changes in exchange rates - 163 60 {625) - (402)
Balance at December 31, 2015 $ - 66,187 88,754 152,677 - 307,618
Balance at January 1, 2014 3 - 41,468 55,778 890,069 - 186,315
Depreciation - 12,089 18,964 34,663 - 65,716
Disposal - - (4,858) (5,766) - (10,624)
Effect of changes in exchange rates - 119 206 1,215 - 1,540
Balance at December 31, 2014 s - 53,676 70,090 119,181 - 242,947
Carrying value:
December 31, 2015 b3 501,490 396,190 44,160 213,768 2,041 1,157,649
December 31, 2014 $ 500,420 404,413 57,599 138,754 2,199 1,103,385

Please refer to note 8 for the information of the pledged property, plant and equipment, as of
December 31, 2015 and 2014.

Short-term and long-term borrowings
The details, terms and clauses of the Group's short-term and long-term borrowings were as follows:

i)  Short-term borrowings

December 31, 2015
Maturity
Currency Interest rate year Amount
Unsecured loans Ush 2.5762 2016 8§ 42,604

(Continued)
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December 31, 2014
Maturity
Currency Interest rate year Amount
Secured loans TWD 1.1 2015 $ 50,000
Unsecured loans USD 2.5328 2015 41,105
Unsecured loans RMB 5.56 2015 10,147
Total $__ 101,252

Please refer to note 6(q) for the disclosures on the Group's risk exposure to interest rates and
liquidity risks.

As of December 31, 2015, and 2014, the unused credit facilities of the Group's short-term
borrowings amounted to $870,000 and $820,000 thousand, respectively.

Long-term borrowings

December 31, 2015
Maturity
Currency Interest rate year Amount
Secured loans UsD 2.4490 2020 $ 44,406
Current b 1,966
Non-current 42.440
Total 3 44.406
December 31, 2014
Maturity
Currency Interest rate year Amount
Secured loans USsSh 2.3576 2020 §__ 44,741
Current $ 1,897
Non-current 42,844
Total $ 44,741

Please refer to note 6(q) for the disclosures on the Group's risk exposure to interest rates and
liquidity risks.

Collateral of loans

The Group has mortgaged their assets as collateral of loans. Please refer to note 8.

(Continued)
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(g) Bonds payable

The Company issued unsecured convertible bonds as follows:

December 31, December 31,

2015 2014
Total amount of convertible Bonds $ 400,000 400,000
Discount on bonds payable unamortized balance (4,195) (10,657)
Accumulated converted balance (172,300} (134,100}
Bonds payable of ending balance S 223,505 255,243
Embedded Derivatives —put option and call option (financial § 23) -
liability at fair value through profit or loss—non-current)
Equity component —conversion options (Capital surpluses—  § 11,483 13,409
Share options)
2015 2014
Embedded Derivatives--put option and call 'option measured (42) 142
at fair value through profit or loss (reported in other gains
and losses)
Interest expenses (financial costs) $ 5,196 6,159
i) Denomination and coupon rate

On October 21, 2013, the Company issued 4,000 shares of unsecured convertible bonds with 0%
coupon rate and three years maturity amounted to $400,000 thousand.

Conversion provision

i

ii.

Bondholders are eligible to exercise the conversion right between one month after the bond
issuance and ten days before the expiration date.

Conversion price: The conversion price at the issuance date was NTD$48 per share. If
there is any increase in the Company's common stock (such as cash injection, capital
increase from related eamings or capital surplus, issuance of new shares for consolidation
purposes or as the consideration payable by the Company for its acquisition of another
company's shares, stock split or cash injection by participating in the issuance of overseas
depository receipts, etc), the Company shall calculate and adjust the conversion price based
on the formula stated in the second conversion arrangement before publishing an
announcement through GTSM. The Company set August 16, 2014, August 19, 2015 and
September 3, 2015 as the date of ex-dividend and ex-right. The conversion price amounted
to $43.51, $39.81 and $39.80 per share after the dividends and rights distribution have been
adjusted.

{Continued)
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iii}) Redemption method

The Company's call option (right of redemption):

i

ii.

If, between one month after the bond issuance and forty days before the expiration date, the
closing price of the stocks is higher than 1.3 times the conversion price for 30 consecutive
working days, the Company is entitled to send a “bond redemption notification” to the
bondholders and post an announcement to notify GTSM that the Company is to repurchase
all bonds at their face value by cash within 5 workings days after the benchmark date of
bond redemption. The benchmark date of the bond redemption is the 30 days after the
notification has been sent.

If, between one month after bond issuzance and forty days before the expiration date, the
outstanding balance of the bonds is lower than 10% of the total issued amount, the
Company is entitled to, with notification in advance, repurchase all outstanding bonds at
their face value.

Bondholders' put option

Bondholders are entitled to exercise the put option beginning from the put day, which is two or
three years after the issue date. The Company should send "bond put table notification" to
bondholders and publish an announcement through GTSM, and bondholders then can exercise
their put option by written notice to the Company to redeem the bonds at face value within 30

days.

v) Since the bondholders are entitled to request the Company to redeem the bonds at the agreed
price two years after the bond issuance, the Company, based on the principle of conservatism,
booked $255,243 of convertible bonds as current liability. However, this action does not imply
that such current Hability shall be fully redeemed within a year.

Provisions

Warranty
provision Legal matter Total

Balance at January 1, 2015 $ 11,470 6,370 17,840

Provisions made during the year 45,091 - 45,091

Provisions used during the year (30,174) - (30,174)

Effect of changes in exchange rates {127) - (127

Balance at December 31, 2015 $ 26,260 6,370 32,630

Balance at January 1, 2014 $ 10,044 6,370 16,414

Provisions made during the year 36,616 - 36,616

Provisions used during the year (35,438) - (35,438)

Effect of changes in exchange rates 248 - 248

Balance at December 31, 2014 hY 11,470 6,370 17.840

(Continued)
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Warranties

In 2015 and 2014, provisions are estimated based on the historical data of trading of interment
communications equipment, which are mainly associated with the Company’s business products.
The Group anticipates the warranties to occur in the following year of the sales.

Legal

The Group assumed a contingent liability in respect of a legal claim brought against the Group
by a former employee. The plaintiff made claims in the amount of $10,963 thousand. The Group
also assumed other contingent liability of $5,290 as the result determined by Taiwan High Court.
Interest is calculated using the 5% per annum rate from October 14, 2007 until the repayment
date. The Group and another accused both appealed to the Supreme Court concerning the
aforementioned matter. The Supreme Court handed the case back over to the High Court for re-
assessment. The High Court then overruled the lawsuit against the plaintiff in November 2014,
However, since the plaintiffs disagreed with the verdict, they filed another appeal to the Supreme
Court, and the case is still in progress. As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, the Group estimated
the debt provision to be $6,370 thousand due to the aforementioned lawsuit.

(i) Employee benefits

i)

Defined benefit plans

The following table shows a reconciliation between the present value of the defined benefit
obligation and the fair value of plan assets:

December 31, December 31,

2015 2014
The present value of the defined benefit obligations $ 52,659 49,291
Fair value of plan assets (23.491) (21,720)
The net defined benefit liability ) 29,168 27,571

The Group makes defined benefit plan contributions to the pension fund account at Bank of
Taiwan that provides pensions for employees upon retirement. The plans (covered by the Labor
Standards Law) entitle a retired employee to receive an annual payment based on years of
service and average salary for the six months prior to retirement.

i.  Composition of plan assets

The Group allocates pension funds in accordance with the Regulations for Revenues,
Expenditures, Safeguard and Utilization of the Labor Retirement Fund, and such funds are
managed by the Bureau of Labor Funds, Ministry of Labor. With regard to the utilization of
the funds, minimum earnings in the annual distributions on the final financial statements
shall be no less than the earnings attainable from the amounts accrued from two-year time
deposits with interest rates offered by local banks.

The Group's Bank of Taiwan labor pension reserve account balance amounted to $23,491
thousand at the end of the reporting period. For information on the utilization of the labor
pension fund assets including the asset allocation and yield of the fund, please refer to the
website of the Bureau of Labor Funds, Ministry of Labor.

(Continued)
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Movements in present value of the defined benefit obligations

The movements in present value of the Group's defined benefit plan obligation for the years
ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, were as follows:

2015 2014
Defined benefit obligation at 1 January by 49291 49,449
Current service costs and interest 1,536 1,737
Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability
{asset)
—Return on plan assets (excluding amounts 1,089 (1,895)
included in net interest expense)
—Dhue to changes in financial assumption of 743 -
actuarial (losses) gains
Defined benefit obligation at 31 December £ 52,659 49,291

Movement of defined benefit plan assets

The movements in the fair value of the defined benefit plan assets for the years ended
December 31, 2015 and 2014, were as follows:

2015 2014
Fair value of plan assets, January 1 $ 21,720 20,032
Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability
(asset)
—Return on plan assets (excluding amounts 577 476
included in net interest expense)

Contributions made 1,194 1,212
Fair value of plan assets, December 31 $ 23,491 21,720

Expenses recognized in profit or loss

The expenses recognized on profit or loss for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014,
were as follows:

2015 2014
Current service cost b 589 786
Net interest on the defined benefit liability (asset) 540 577
h) 1,129 1,363

(Continued)
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2015 2014
Operating costs $ 478 617
Selling expenses 140 120
Administration expenses 259 353
Research and development expenses 252 273
$ 1,129 1,363

Remeasurement in the net defined benefit liability (asset) recognized in other
comprehensive income

The Group's Remeasurement in the net defined benefit liability (asset) recognized in other
comprehensive income for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, were as follows:

2015 2014
Cumulative amount, January 1 $ 8,019 10,016
Recognized during the period 1,662 (1.997)
Cumulative amount, December 31 3 9.681 8.019

Actuarial assumptions

The principal actuarial assumpation used to determine the present value of the defined
benefit obligation on December 31, 2015 and 2014 1s as follows:

2015.12.31 2014.12.31
Discount rate 1.875 % 2.000 %
Future salary increases rate 3.300 % 3.300 %

The Group expects to make contributions of $1,194 thousand to the defined benefit plans in
the next year starting from the reporting date of 2015.

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation is 15.35 years.
Sensitivity analysis

When calculating the present value of the defined benefit obligations, the Group uses
judgments and estimations to determine the actuarial assumptions, and future salary
changes, as of the financial statement date. Any changes in the actuarial assumptions may
significantly impact the amount of the defined benefit obligations.

(Continued)
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As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, the present value of defined benefit obligation impact
was as follow:

The impact of defined benefit
obligation
Increase 0.25% Decrease 0.25%

December 31, 2015
Discount rate (0.25%) § (1,475) 1,529
Future salary increase rate (0.25%) 1,482 (1,427)

Pecember 31, 2014
Discount rate (0.25%) (1,476) 1,519
Future salary increase rate (0.25%) 1,478 (1,437)

Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial
assumptions, holding other assumptions constant, would have affected the defined benefit
obligation by the amounts shown above. The method used in the sensitivity analysis is
consistent with the calculation of pension liabilities in the balance sheets.

There is no change in the method and assumptions used in the preparation of sensitivity
analysis for 2015 and 2014.

ii) Defined contribution plans

iii)

The Group allocates 6% of each employee's monthly wages to the labor pension personal
account at the Bureau of the Labor Insurance in accordance with the provisions of the Labor
Pension Act. Under this defined contribution plan, the Group allocates a fixed amount to the
Bureau of the Labor Insurance without additional legal or constructive obligations.

The Group's pension costs under the defined contribution method were $29,768 thousand and
$23,435 thousand for 2015 and 2014, respectively. Payment was made to the Bureau of the
Labor Insurance and the local authorities of the consolidated overseas subsidiaries.

Short-term employee benefit

December 31, December 31,
2015 2014

Annual leave benefit 3 17,656 13,455

(Continued)
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(i) Income tax

D

Income tax expenses

The amount of income tax for 2015 and 2014 were as follows:

Current tax expense
Current period
Adjustment for prior periods

Deferred income tax expense
Origination and reversal of temporary differences
Income tax expense from continuing operations

2015 2014
$ 99,780 54,537
1,042 (9.738)
100,822 44,799
(1,991) 19.218
$ 98.831 64,017

Reconciliation of income tax and profit before tax for 2015 and 2014 were as follows:

Net income before tax

Income tax using the Company's domestic tax rate
Effect of tax rates in foreign jurisdiction
Previously underestimate (overestimate) income tax
Non-deductible expenses

Tax-free revenue

Unrecognized tax loss of deferred tax assets
Unrecognized changes in temporary differences
10% surtax on unappropriated earnings

Others

Total

2015 2014
$ 427,947 376,051
$ 72,751 63,929
32,775 11,212
1,042 (9,738)
3,230 762
(5,246) (3,232)
165 (1,487)
(2,000) -
9,372 8,471
(13.258) (5.900)
$ 98,831 64,017
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ii) Deferred income tax assets and liabilities

i.

Unrecognized deferred income tax assets
Deferred income tax assets have not been recognized in respect of the following items:

December 31, December 31,

2015 2014
Deductible temporary differences $ 7,000 9,000
Tax losses 10,039 9,883
S 17,039 18,883

Tax losses are applied to Income Tax Act in Canada that can be carried forward for twenty
years, after assessed by tax authority, to offset taxable income before apply to tax rate.
Deferred income tax assets have not been recognized in respect of these items because it is
not probable that the future taxable profit will be available, against which, the Group can
utilize the benefits there from.

As of December 31, 2015, the deferred income tax assets of Tax losses which have not been
recognized were as follows:

1) Canada—federal

Year of
Year Amount expiration
2010 $ 2,746 2030
2011 8,157 2031
2012 8,464 2032
2013 11,676 2033
2014 7,451 2034
2015 624 2035
$ 39,118
2) Canada—state
Year of
Year Amount expiration
2010 $ 2,746 2030
2011 8,157 2031
2012 8,464 2032
2013 11,676 2033
2014 7,451 2034
2015 624 2035
3 39,118
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ii. Recognized deferred income tax assets and liabilities

Changes in tﬁe amount of deferred income tax assets and liabilities for 2015 and 2014 were

as follows:

Deferred income tax assets:

Unrealized Tax
profit from differences
sales from sales Others Total
Balance at January 1, 2015 $ 11,652 8,985 13,945 34,582
Recognized in profit or loss 5.677 2,878 11,571 20,126
Balance at December 31, 2015 3 17,329 11,863 25,516 54,708
Balance at January 1, 2014 $ 15,910 10,795 13,802 40,507
Recognized in profit or loss (4.258) (LL8ID) 143 {(5,925)
Balance at December 31, 2014 5 11,652 8,985 13,945 34,582
Deferred income tax liabilities:
Foreign
investment
income Bonds value
accounted for though
using equity profit or
method loss Others Total
Balance at January 1, 2015 $ (49,452) - (958) (50,410)
Recognized in profit or loss (18.,556) - 725 (17.831)
Balance at December 31, 2015 b (68,008) - _{233) (68.241)
Balance at January 1, 2014 $ (36,566) (55) (715) (37,336)
Recognized in profit or loss (12.886) 55 (243) (13,074
Balance at December 31, 2014 $ (49,452) - (958) (50,410)

iii) Examination and Approval

The tax authorities have assessed the Company's income tax return for 2013. However, as the tax
authorities ruled that extra taxes of $14,747 thousand be paid, the company is intended to appeal

to the court for re-assessment.

Integrated income tax information

Information related to the unappropriated earnings and tax deduction ratio is summarized as

below:
December 31, December 31,
2015 2014
Unappropriated earnings of 1997 and before $ - -
Unappropriated earnings of 1998 and after 628,724 539.231
h 628,724 539,231

(Continued)
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December 31, December 31,
2015 2014

Balance of imputation credit account 5 64,802 68.982

After the Group's income tax returns were examined and assessed by the tax authorities, the
imputation tax credit ratio of earnings to be distributed in 2016 and 2015 is estimated at 15.83%.
The actual imputation tax credit ratio of earnings distributed in 2015 and 2014 was 14.26%.

From January 1, 2015, as the resident of the Republic of China received the distributions of
dividends or earnings, the imputation tax credit is revised to 50% of the original tax credit. The
shareholder received the net distribution of dividends or earnings and the imputation tax credit
which was levied 10% surplus tax that the 50% of the surplus tax can be used to deduct the
withholding tax. :

(k) Capital and other equity

With 100,000 thousand shares and cach share amounting to $10, the total value of the nominal
ordinary shares both amounted to $1,000,000 as of December 31, 2015 and 2014. 97,501 and 90,811
thousand shares of common stocks were issued as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively. All
issued shares were paid up upon issuance.

A reconciliation of the Company's outstanding shares the years 2015 and 2014 is as foliows:

Unit: thousands shares

2015 2014
Balance at January 1 90,811 82,832
Exercise of employee share options 769 780
Capitalization of retained earnings 4,541 5,682
Capitalization of employee bonus 1,222 1,194
Conversion of convertible bonds 878 2,141
Cancellation of Treasury Stock (720) (1,818)
Balance at December 31 97.501 90,811

i)  Issue of common stock

On June 18, 2015, the stockholders approved a resolution to transfer the stockholders' bonus of
$45,406 thousand and the employee bonus of $53,302 thousand for the issuance of 5,763
thousand shares of common stocks, with a face value of 10 dollars per share. The Company has
received the approval from the Financial Supervisory Commission for this capital increase on
July 7, 2015, with August 19, 2015 recognized as the date of capital increase. The Company has
registered the change with the relevant authoritics. Among the total bonus transferred, the
employee bonus of $53,302 was transferred for the issuance of 1,222 thousand shares of
common stocks. The Employee bonus was calculated based on the closing price one day prior to
the stockholders' resolution and the impacts from ex-right and ex-dividend. The face value will
be recognized as "share capital" on the date of issuance, and the remaining amount that exceeds
the face value will be recognized as "additional paid-in capital”.

(Continued)



30
LANNER ELECTRONICS INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to the Consolidated Financial . Statements

On June 19, 2014, the stockholders approved a resolution to transfer the stockholders’ bonus of
$56,820 thousand and the employee bonus of $51,540 thousand for the issvance of 6,876
thousand shares of common stocks, with a face value of 10 dollars per share. The Company has
received the approval from the Financial Supervisory Commission for this capital increase on
July 8, 2014, with August 16, 2014 recognized as the date of capital increase. The Company has
registered the change with the relevant authorities. Among the total bonus transferred, the
employee bonus of $51,540 was transferred for the issuance of 1,194 thousand shares of
common stocks. The Employee bonus was calculated based on the closing price one day prior to
the stockholders' resolution and the impacts from ex-right and ex-dividend. The face value will
be recognized as "share capital" on the date of issuance, and the remaining amount that exceeds
the face value will be recognized as "additional paid-in capital".

Due to the exercise of the employee stock options in 2015 and 2014, the Company issued 769
and 780 thousand shares of stocks, respectively. Exercise prices were $19.2 and $20.6 per share
in 2015 and 2014, respectively.

In 2015 and 2014, the Company issued puttable convertible bonds of $38,200 thousand and
$102,800 thousand, which were converted to 878 thousand and 2,142 thousand shares of
common stocks in 2015 and 2014, respectively, at $43.51 and $48 per share.

Capital sufplus

The composition of the Company's capital surplus as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, are as
follows:

December 31, December 31,

2015 2014
Share premium from issuance $ 430,911 353,158
Changes in equity of associates and joint ventures 5,879 5,277
accounted for using equity method

Employee share options 6,659 5,300
Share options 11,483 13,409
Employee share options expired 7,203 7.203

$ 462.135 384,347

In accordance with the ROC Company Act, realized capital reserves can only be reclassified as
share capital or distributed as cash dividends after offsetting losses. The aforementioned capital
reserves include share premiums and donation gains. In accordance with the Securities Offering
and Issuance Guidelines, the amount of capital reserves to be reclassified under share capital
shall not exceed 10% of the actual share capital amount.

(Continued)
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iif) Retained earnings

i.

il.

iii.

Legal reserve

In accordance with the Company Act, 10% of net income after tax should be set aside as
legal reserve, until it is equal to authorized capital. If the Company experienced profit for
the year, the distribution of the statutory earnings reserve, either by new shares or by cash,
shall be decided at the shareholders meeting, and the distribution amount is limited to the
portion of legal reserve which exceeds 25% of the paid-in capital.

Special earnings reserve

By choosing to apply exemptions granted under IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of International
Financial Reporting Standards during the Company's first-time adoption of the IFRSs
endorsed by the FSC, cumulative translation adjustments (gains) recognized under
shareholders' equity were reclassified to retained earnings at the adoption date. In
accordance with Ruling No. 1010012865 issued by the FSC on April 6, 2012, an increase in
retained earnings due to the first-time adoption of the IFRSs endorsed by the FSC shall be
reclassified as a special earnings reserve during earnings distribution. However, when
adjusted retained earnings due to the first-time adoption of the IFRSs endorsed by the FSC
are insufficient for the appropriation of a special earnings reserve at the transition date, the
Company may appropriate a special earnings reserve up to the amount of increase in
retained earnings. Upon the use, disposal, or reclassification of related assets, the Company
may reverse the special earnings reserve proportionately. As a result of elections made
according to IFRS 1, the Company has reclassified $(13,624) thousand to retained earnings
and is not required to appropriate a special earnings reserve.

In accordance with the above Ruling, a portion of current-period earnings and undistributed
prior-period earnings shall be reclassified as a special earnings reserve during earnings
distribution. The amount to be reclassified should be equal to the difference between the
total net current-period reduction of special earnings reserve resulting from the first-time
adoption of IFRSs and the carrying amount of other shareholders' equity as stated above.
Similarly, a portion of undistributed prior-period earnings shall be reclassified as a special
earnings reserve (which does not qualify for eamings distribution) to account for
cumulative changes to other shareholders' equity pertaining to prior periods due to the first-
time adoption of IFRSs. Amounts of subsequent reversals pertaining to the net reduction of
other shareholders' equity shall qualify for additional distributions.

Earnings distribution

According to the revision of the Company’s bylaw on June 15, 2011, the Company's net
carnings from the current year shall be used to offSet prior years' deficits, pay income tax,
provide 10% as legal reserve, provide or reverse a special reserve in accordance with
Section 41 of the Securities and, Exchange Act, pay 10% to 20% as employee bonuses and
compensate 2% as directors' and supervisors' remuneration. After the abovementioned
appropriations, the distribution of the remaining earnings, if any, should be proposed by the
board of directors and is subject to the stockholders' approval.
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The Company’s industry is currently in a growth phase. Hence, there are plans for the
Company to expand the existing production line over the next few years. Since capital is
required for the Company to embark on such plans, a residual dividend policy is adopted.
This ensures that retained earnings are distributed as cash dividends only after satisfying
such capital requirements. However, the cash dividend distribution should not be lower than
30 percent of the total dividend distribution of each year

In accordance with the amendments to the Company Act in May 2015, the recipients of
dividends and bonuses are limited to shareholders and do not include employees. The Board
of Directors proposed the amendments on December 23, 2015, which will be approved at
the 2016 annual shareholders’ meeting. Please refer to employee benefits expense in Note
6(0).

For the years 2014, the estimated amounts of employees' bonuses were $53,302 thousand,
and the estimated amounts of directors' and supervisors' emoluments were $5,467 thousand.
Such amounts were estimated by multiplying after-tax income by the percentage of
distribution of employees’ bonuses and directors' and supervisors' emoluments, and
recorded as cost of sales or operating expenses in the period. The actual amount of
employee bonus and remuneration to the board of directors and supervisors distributed for
the year 2014 is identical to that estimated in the financial report ended 2014, and related
information can be accessed through the Market Observation Post System.

Earnings distribution for 2014 and 2015 was decided via the general meeting of
shareholders held on June 18, 2015 and June 19, 2014, respectively. The relevant dividend
distributions to shareholders were as follows:

2014 2013
Amount Amount
per share per share
(NT Total (NT Total
dollars) Amount dollars) Amount
Dividends distributed to
common stockholders:
Cash $ 1.4732 136,218 1.4600 121,750
Stock 0.4910 45,406 0.6800 56.820
Total b 181.624 178,570

iv) Treasury stock

According to Securities and Exchange Act regulations, the number of shares of treasury stock is
not allowed to exceed 10% of the number of shares issued. Moreover, the total value of treasury
stock is not allowed to exceed the sum of retained earnings, paid-in capital in excess of par
value, and realized capital surplus. During the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, the
number of shares have been recovered by the Company were 720 thousand shares and 1,818
thousand shares, with a total value of $25.678 thousand and $31,954 thousand, were in
compliance with the Securities and Exchange Act.
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In 2015, in order to retain the Company's credits and shareholder's rights and benefits, the
Company has purchased 720 thousand shares of treasury stock in compliance with the Securities
and Exchange Act regulations. On November 10, 2015, the Board has declared a write-off, and
therefore, debited the capital surplus and the unappropriated retained earnings by 3,225 thousand
and 15,253 thousand, respectively. The Board has announced the write-off date as November 10,
2015, and the registration was filed and completed on November 20, 2015.

On December 24, 2013, the board of directors of the Company approved the resolution to cancel
1,818 thousand shares of treasury stocks, thereby recognizing 3,699 thousand of Capital
Surplus—issuance premium and 10,075 thousand of undistributed earnings. On January 14,
2014, the Board of Directors set the resolution date as the benchmark date of the capital
reduction, and completed the registration of the cancellation on February 12, 2014.

According to Securities and Exchange Act regulations, treasury stock cannot be pledged. Until
the treasury stock is transferred, it does not carry any shareholder rights.

v) Other equities (net of tax)

Foreign exchange
differences arising

from foreign Non-controlling
operation interests Total

Balance at January 1, 2015 3 31,206 6,172 37,378
Foreign exchange differences arising {11,211) {1,141) (12,352)

from net assets of foreign operation
Balance at December 31, 2015 $ 19,995 5,031 25,026
Balance at January 1, 2014 b 12,835 4,732 17,567
Foreign exchange differences arising 18,371 1,440 19,811

from net assets of foreign operation

Balance at January 1, 2014 h ] 31.206 6,172 37,378

() Share-based payment

On January 9, 2008, the Securities and Futures Bureau approved the Company's issuance of 2,000
units of Employee Stock option; with each unit representing 1,000 shares of common stock, wherein a
total of 2,000 thousand shares may be subscribed. The option holder is eligible, two years after
issuance until the sixth year of issuance, to convert a certain percentage of options to common stocks
at the price designated on the issuance date. Under such circumstances as changes in equity or
distribution of cash dividends, the exercise price per share and the number of subscription per option
are to be adjusted using a specific formula. However, the adjusted exercise price should not be lower
than the par value. All options were granted on January 4, 2008 and their fair value on the grant date
was priced using the Black Scholes option pricing model. The weighted-average data of each
assumption were as follows:

Dividend rate 0.71 %
Expected volatility 826 %
Risk-free interest rate 2.635 %
Expecied life 6 years
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The Company estimates the compensation to be $3,690 thousand based on the above assumptions.
The compensation will be amortized over four years.

The quantity and weighted-average exercise prices of the employee stock option are as follows:

2014

Exercise price
Employee stock options in 2008 Units (dollars)

Outstanding balance as of January 1 135 § 222
Options granted - -
Options exercised - -
Options cancelled ‘ - -
Options expired 135 222
Outstanding balance as of December 31 - -

Exercisable as of December 31 - -

Exercisable shares per unit as of December 31 —adjusted -

Fair market value $ 34

| The options the Company provided to its employees on January 4, 2008 had already expired on
January 4, 2014. The Company has reclassified $199 thousand of "additional paid-in capital—
employee options" as "additional paid-in capital -—expired employee options".

On January 6, 2012, the Securities and Futures Bureau approved the Company's issuance of 3,000
units of Employee’s Stock option; with each unit representing 1,000 shares of common stock, wherein
a total of 3,000 thousand shares may be subscribed. The option holder is eligible, two years after
issuance until the sixth year of issuance, to convert a certain percentage of options to common stocks
at the price designated on the issuance date. Under such circumstances as changes in equity or
distribution of cash dividends, the exercise price per share and the number of subscription per option
are to be adjusted using a specific formula. However, the adjusted exercise price should not be lower
than the par value. All options were granted on June 7, 2012 and their fair value on the grant date was
priced using the Black Scholes option pricing model. The weighted-average data of each assumption
were as follows:

Dividend rate - %
Expected volatility 1341 %
Risk-free interest rate 0.93 %
Expected life 5 years

The Company estimates the compensation to be $6,936 thousand based on the above assumptions.
The compensation will be amortized over three years. Under the fair value method, the compensation
of the option were estimated to be $299 thousand and $1,738 thousand in 2015 and 2014,
respectively. The additional paid-in capital also increased due to the stock option plan.
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The outstanding stock option rights as follows:

Employee stock options in 2012

Qutstanding balance as of January 1

Options granted

Options exercised

Options cancelled

Options expired

Qutstanding balance as of December 31

Exercisable as of December 31

Exercisable shares per unit as of December 31 —adjusted

Fair market value

Employee stock options in 2012

QOutstanding balance as of January 1

Options granted

Options exercised

Options cancelled

Options expired

Outstanding balance as of December 31

Exercisable as of December 31

Exercisable shares per unit as of December 31 —adjusted

Fair market value

2015
Exercise price
Units (dollars)
2,042 8 20.6
589 20.6
48 20.6
1,405 19.2
1,405 19.2
1,386
h) 3.7
2014
Exercise price
Units (dollars)
2,840 § 224
598 20.6
200 20.6/22.4
2.042 20.6
2,042 20.6
1.305
$ 3.7

As of December 31, 2015, the expected duration of the employee stock option issued in 2012 was

1.44 years.
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On August 25, 2015, the Securities and Futures Bureau approved the Company's issuance of 3,000
units of Employee’s Stock option; with each unit representing 1,000 shares of common stock, wherein
a total of 3,000 thousand shares may be subscribed. The option holder is eligible, two years after
issuance until the sixth year of issuance, to convert a certain percentage of options to common stocks
at the price designated on the issuance date. Under such circumstances as changes in equity or
distribution of cash dividends, the exercise price per share and the number of subscription per option
are to be adjusted using a specific formula. However, the adjusted exercise price should not be lower
than the par value. All options were granted on September 17, 2015 and their fair value on the grant
date was priced using the Black Scholes option pricing model. The weighted-average data of each
assumption were as follows:

Dividend rate - %
Expected volatility 34.99 %
Risk-free interest rate 0.8779 %
Expected life 5 years

The Company estimates the compensation to be $20,657 thousand based on the above assumptions.
The compensation will be amortized over three years. Under the fair value method, the compensation
of the option were estimated to be $2,711 thousand in 2015. The additional paid-in capital also
increased due to the stock option plan.

The outstanding stock option rights as follows:

2015
Exercise price
Employee stock options in 2012 Units {dollars)

Qutstanding balance as of January 1 - $ -
Options granted 3,000 35.6
Options exercised - -
Options cancelled 30 35.6
Options expired - -
Outstanding balance as of December 31 2,970 356
Exercisable as of December 31 - 35.6
Exercisable shares per unit as of December 31 —adjusted 1,000

Fair market value $ 11.3

As of December 31, 2015, the expected duration of the employee stock option issued in 2012 was
4,71 years.

Due to employees’ subscription on the group’s issuance of stock for cash, compensation cost was
recognized and is to be amortized over five years. The compensation costs for 2015 and 2014 both
amounted to $602 and $1,170 thousand, respectively.

(Continued)
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(m) Earnings per share

The calculation of the Group's basic eamnings per share and diluted earnings per share for years ended
December 31, 2015 and 2014 were as follows:

i}  Basic earnings per share
2015 2014
Net income attributable to ordinary shareholders of the  § 318,404 303,717
Company
Weighted-average number of ordinary shares 96,867 93,963
Basic earnings per share (in NT dollars) 5 3.29 3.23
ii) Diluted earnings per share
2015 2014
Net income of the company $ 318,404 303,717
Effect of after tax interest expense of conversion bonds 4313 5,112
Net income attributable to ordinary shareholders of the  § 322,717 308,829
Company
Weighted-average number of ordinary shares (basic) 96,867 93,963
Impact of potential common shares
Effect of employee stock bonus 1,938 1,768
Effect of employee stock option 1,511 1,465
Effect of conversion bonds 5.721 6,111
Weighted-average number of ordinary shares (diluted) 106,037 103,307
Diluted earnings per share (in NT dollars) $ 3.04 2.99

For calculation of the dilutive effect of the stock option, the average market value is assessed
based on the quoted market price where the Company’s option is outstanding.

(n) Revenue
The details of the Group's revenue for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014 were as follows:

2015 2014

Sale of goods 5 5,439,499 4,535,864

Unearned revenue for consolidated company amounted to $7,528 thousand and $14,086 thousand in
2015 and 2014, respectively. As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, accumulated unearned revenue
amounted to $54,138 thousand and $44,793 thousand, respectively. Unearned revenue was booked
due to identifiable services to be rendered.

(Continued)
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Employees' and compensation directors' and supervisors' remuneration

In accordance with the Company's article, which is not yet approved from the shareholder's meeting,
the Company should contribute 10% to 20% of its profit as employee compensation, and no greater
than 2% as directors’ and supervisors’ remuneration, when there is profit for the year. However, if the
Company has accumulated deficits, the profit should be reserved to offset the deficit. The amounts of
remuneration to each director and supervisor, as well as the bonuses to employees, are subject for
approval during the board of directors' meeting.

The employee bonuses, and directors' and supervisors' remuneration were recognized as cost of sales
or operating expenses on a specific percentage of the net income. These amounts are calculated by
using the Company's profit before tax (without the employee bonuses, and directors' and supervisors'
remuneration), multiplied by the percentage specified in the Company's article for each period. The
Company recognized its employee bonuses of $54,193, and directors' and supervisors' remuneration
of $5,558 in 2015. The differences between the amounts approved in the shareholders' meeting and

those recognized in the financial statements, if any, are accounted for as changes in accounting
estimates and recognized as profit or loss in the following year.

Non-operating income and expenses
i)  Other income

The details of the Group's other income for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014 were

as follows:
2015 2014
Rent income 318 1,054
Interest income 1,783 1,340
Other 97.878 69,887
100,479 72,281
ii)  Other gains and losses
2015 2014
Gain (loss) on foreign exchange (3,757) 38,353
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment (375) (2,084)
Valuation gain (loss) on financial assets (42) 384
Other (1,660) (201)
(5.834) 36,452
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iif} Finance costs

The details of the Group's finance costs for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014 were

as foilows:

Interest expenses — convertible bonds
Interest expenses —short-term loans

(q) Financial instruments

i)

Credit risk

i.  Exposure to credit risk

2015 2014
5,196 6,159
2,920 3,028
8,116 9,187

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum amount exposed to credit

risk.

ii. Concentration of credit risk

Approximately, 23% and 24% of the Group's total sales were derived from a single client in
2015 and 2014, respectively. Region wise, approximately 93% and 92%of the sales were
significantly concentrated in Asia and America in 2015 and 2014, respectively.

Liquidity risk

The following table shows the contractual maturities of financial liabilities, including estimated
interest payments and excluding the impact of netting agreements.

Carrying Contractual Within a
amount cash flows year 1-2 years 3.5 years Over 5 years
December 31, 2015
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Long-term debts (including due within a year) $ 44,406 49,304 2,183 2,183 6,549 38,389
Bonds payable 223 505 223,505 223,505 - -
Non-current financial Liabilities at fair value 23 23 23 B -
through profit or loss
Short-term debts 42,604 43,154 43,154 - -
Accounts payable 835,610 835,610 835,610 - -
Other payable 220,382 220,382 220,382 - -
5 1,366,530 1,371,978 1,324,857 2,183 6,549 38,389
December 31, 2014
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Long-term debts (including due within a year) 3 44,741 50,546 2,143 2,143 6,429 39,831
Bonds payable 255,243 255,243 255,243 - -
Short-term debis 101,252 101,252 101,252 - -
Accounts payable 623,795 623,795 623,795 - -
Other payable 144,504 144,504 144,504 - -
$ 1,169,535 1,175,340 1,126,937 2,143 6,429 39,831

As the Group issued the convertible bonds with put provision, the earliest date on which the
bonds can be resold should reflect in the financial statement.
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The group expects neither a much earlier occurrence of the cash flow analyzed on the maturity
date nor a significant change in the amount.

ii) Currency risk

i.

ii.

fii.

Exposure to foreign currency risk
The Group's significant exposure to foreign currency risk was as follows:

Foreign Exchange
currency rate NTD

December 31, 2015
Financial assets:
Monetary items:
USD (note) $ 40,113 32.7720 1,314,589
Financial liabilities:
Monetary items:
USD (note) b 20,539 32.7720 673,109
December 31, 2014
Financial assets:
Monetary items:
USD (note) $ 37,056 31.6190 1,181,301
Financial liabilities:
Monetary items:
USD (note) b 18,832 31.6190 595,462

Note: Amounts are designated before consolidation.
Sensitivity analysis

The Group's exposure to foreign currency risk arises from the translation of foreign
currency exchange gains and losses on cash and cash equivalents, trade and other
receivables and trade payables that are denominated in foreign currency. A weakening
(strengthening) 1% of appreciation (depreciation) of the NTD against the USD as of
December 31, 2015 and 2014 would have increased or decreased the net profit by $16,246
and $15,126 thousand, respectively. The analysis is performed on the same basis for both
periods.

Foreign exchange gain and loss on monetary item

Since the Group has marry kinds of functional currency, the information on foreign
exchange gain (loss) on Monetary items is disclosed by total amount. For the year 2015
and 2014, foreign exchange gain (loss) (including realized and unrealized abortions)
amounted to $(3,757) thousand and $38,353 thousand.
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iv) Interest rate analysis

Please refer to the note for liquidity risk management and the Group's interest rate exposure to its
financial assets and liabilities.

The following sensitivity analysis is based on the risk exposure of the interest rate on derivative
and non-derivative financial instruments on the reporting date. Regarding assets with variable
interest rates, the analysis is on the basis of the assumption that the amount of assets outstanding
at the reporting date was outstanding throughout the year. The rate of change is expressed as the
interest rate increases or decreases by 1% when reporting to management internally, which also
represents the management of the Group's assessment on the reasonably possible interval of
interest rate change.

If the interest rate increases or decreases by 1%, the Group's net income will increase /decrease
by $722 and $1,212 thousand, respectively, for the years ended December 31, 2015, and 2014,
with all other variable factors remain constant. This is mainly due to the Group's borrowing in
variable rates and investment in variable rate bills.

Information of fair value
i.  Categories and fair value of financial instruments

Except for the followings, carrying amount of the Group's financial assets and liabilities are
valuated approximately to their fair value. No additional disclosure is required in
accordance to the Regulations.

December 31, 2015
Fair value
Carrying
amount Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss
Derivative financial 3 23 - 23 - 23
liabilities for hedging

ii. Valuation techniques and assumptions used in fair value determination

The financial instruments of the Group are evaluated by using the publicly-adopted
valuation models. Forward contracts are referred to the evaluation outcomes from financial
institutions. Convertible bonds are measured by using the binary tree valuation model with
consideration of the parameters of stock shares fluctuations and risk-free interests.

(r) Financial risk management

1)

Overview

The Group is exposed to the following risks arising from financial instruments:
i.  Creditrisk

ii. Liquidity risk

iii. Market risk

(Continued)
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This note expresses the information on risk exposure and objectives, policies and process of risk
measurement and management. For detailed information, please refer to the related notes to each
risk.

Risk management framework

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the risk
management framework. The Board has established the Risk Management Committee, which is
responsible for establishing and monitoring the Group's risk management policies. The
committee reports its activities regularly to the Board of Directors.

The Group's risk management policies are established to identify and analyze the risks faced by
the Group, to set control mechanism, and to monitor the execution of the policies. Risk
management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect the changes in market
conditions and the Group's activities. The Group, through its training and management standards
and procedures, developed a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all
employees understand their roles and obligations.

The Board of Directors oversees how management monitors the risk which should be in
compliance with the Group's risk .management policies and procedures, and reviews the
adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Group.
Assisting the Board of Directors in oversight, the internal Audit undertakes both regular and ad
hoc reviews of risk management controls and procedures, and reports the results to the Board of
Directors.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer.or counterparty to a financial
instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Group's
receivables from customers and investment securities.

i.  Trade and other receivables

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by each customer’s condition.
However, management also considers the demographics of the customers, including the
default risk of the industry and country in which customers operate, as these factors may
have an influence on credit risk, particularly during deteriorating economic circumstances.
The Group’s Accounts Receivable and Notes Receivable are mainly due from customers in
Asia and America, accounting 93% and 96% of the total amount of the receivables as of
December 31, 2015, and 2014, respectively.

The Group has established a credit policy wherein each new customer is assessed for credit
rating before standard payment, delivery terms, and conditions are granted. The analysis
includes external ratings, when available, and in some cases, bank references. Purchase
limits are established for each customer and reviewed regularly. Any amount below the
limits requires no approval from the Board of Directors. Customers that fail to meet the
Company's rating benchmark are allowed to transact with the Company only on a
prepayment basis.
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The Group has established an allowance for bad debt account to reflect the estimated losses
on trade receivables, other receivables, and investments. The allowance for bad debt
-account consists of specific losses related to individually significant exposure and
unrecognized losses arose from similar assets groups. The allowance for bad debt account is
based on the historical collection record of similar financial assets.

ii. Investments

The credit risk exposure in the bank deposits, fixed income investments and other financial
instruments are measured and monitored by the Group's finance department. Since the
Group's transactions are with the counterparties, and the contractually obligated
counterparties are the banks, financial institutions, corporate organizations and government
agencies with good credits, there are no compliance issues, and therefore, there is no
significant credit risk.

ifi. Guarantees

The consolidated company policy provides endorsements and assurances to be offered only
to companies who it has business relationship with, as well as to those companies who hold
more than 50% of the voting rights of the comsolidated company, either directly or
indirectly. As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, the Group did not provide any endorsement
and guarantees.
Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations
associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial
asset. The Group's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it always
have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed
conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Group's reputation.
The Group aims to maintain the level of its cash and cash equivalents and other highly
marketable debt investments at an amount in excess of the expected cash flows on financial
liabilities (other than trade payables) over the succeeding 60 days. The Group also monitors the

level of expected cash outflows on trade and other payables. This excludes the potential impact
of extreme circumstances that cannot reasonably be predicted, such as natural disasters.

Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rate,
and equity prices which will affect the group's income or the value of its holding of financial
instrument. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk
exposure within acceptable parameters while optimizing the return.

In order to manage market risk, the Group conducts derivative transactions and incurs financial
liabilities. All such transactions are within the guidelines set by the Risk Management
Committee. Generally, the Group seeks to apply hedge accounting in order to manage volatility
in profit or loss.

i.  Currency risk
The group reports its financial statements in TWD, while conducting such transaction as

sales, purchase, and borrowing in USD, thereby exposing itself to currency risk.
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The Group hedges most of its trade receivables and trade payables denominated in a foreign
currency. The Group hedges its currency risk throngh forward exchange contracts with
maturity less than one year from the reporting date. '

il. Interest rate risk

To avoid interest rate risk, the Group raises its working capital mainly through long-term
and short-term loans. Should long term loans be needed, plans and conditions of early
repayment shall be settled in advance.

(s) Capital management

®

The Board's policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market
confidence and to sustain future development of the business. Capital consists of ordinary shares,
capital surplus, retained earnings, and non-controlling interests of the Group. The Board of Directors
monitors the return on capital as well as the level of dividends to ordinary shareholders.

The Group's debt-to-adjusted-capital ratio at the end of the reporting period was as follows:

December 31, December 31,
2015 2014
Total liabilities b 1,984,080 1,705,835
Less: cash and cash equivalents 412427 481,720
Net debt $ 1,571,653 1,224,115
Total equity 3 2,303,499 2,040,592
Debt-to-adjusted-capital ratio ' 68 % 60 %

The reduction of the debt to capital equity ratio as of December 31, 2015 was due to the increase in
equity from additional profits and additional paid in capital.

With the approval from the Board of Directors, treasury stock repurchase can be applied to the
respective authorities. Treasury stock repurchase is determined by the board of directors based on the
specific transaction and shares distribution procedure. The Group does not foresee any shares buy-
back plans in the near future. As of December 31, 2015, no changes have been made on the capital
management.

Investment and financing activities of non-cash transactions

From January 1 to December 31, 2015 and 2014, the Group has investment and financing activities of
non-cash transactions as of following:

i)  Earnings convert to capital increase, refer to note 6(k).
ify Employee convert to capital increase, refer to note 6(k).

iif) Conversion of convertible bonds to ordinary share, refer to note 6(k).
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(7) Related-party Transactions

(2)

(b)

Parent Company and ultimate controlling party

The Company is the ultimate controlling party of the Group.

Significant related party transactions

D

ii)

Operating revenue

The amounts of significant sales transactions between the Group and related parties were as
follows:

2015 2014

Other related parties b 795 576

There were no significant differences between the pricing of sale transactions and receipts
condition with related parties and that with other customers. Receivable between related parties
have not receive collateral, and no need to provision for bad debt expense after evaluation.

Purchases
The amount of purchase transactions between the Group and related parties were as follows:

2015 2014

Other related parties $ 512 1,953

There were no significant differences in purchase prices and payment terms between related
parties and non-related suppliers.

Payables to related parties
The payables due to related parties were as follows:
December 31, December 31,

Accounts Type of related parties 2015 2014

Accounts payable Other related parties $ 6,480 210

Loan to related parties

The Group provided other related parties with short term loans limited to $12,286 thousand
(CNY2,500 thousand) in 2014. The maximum balances of loans that the Group provided to its
other related parties amounted to $4,920 thousand (CNY1,000 thousand) in 2014, bringing in
interest revenue amounting to $212 thousand (CNY43 thousand) in 2014. As of December 31,
2015 and 2014, all loans have been redeemed.
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v) Leases

A lease contract with the period from June 2015 to May 2020 was signed with other related party
on April 25, 2015. In accordance with the contract, the group provided $175 thousand as deposit
and booked the same amount under non-current asset. Rent for 2015 and 2014 amounted to
$1,272 thousand and $1,200 thousand, respectively. There were no outstanding balance as of
December 31, 2015 and 2014.

vi) Processing Fees

In 2015, the consolidated entity entered into an agreement with its related parties for the
additional processing of the products and paid a fee. amounting to 5,692 thousand. The
associated accounts payable were recognized in Accounts Payable —Related Parties. There were
no such transactions in 2014.

(¢) Key management personnel compensations

Key management personnel compensation comprised:

2015 2014
Short-term employee benefits $ 03,823 101,903
Post-employment benefits 667 873
b 94,490 102,776
Pledged Assets
The carrying values of pledged assets were as follows:
December 31, December 31,
Pledged assets Object 2015 2014
Certificate of deposits (recorded Guarantee for customs § 2,275 2,247
under other financial
assets — current)
Land Guarantee for long and short- 416,399 415,330
term debts .
Building and structures Guarantee for long and 277,615 284,977
short-term debts
$ 696,289 702,554
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(9) Significant Commitments and Contingencies

The Group assumed a contingent liability of $10,963 thousand due to the compensation claim from its
former employee. The high court ruled the amount of $5,290 thousand paid by the Group plus an excluding
5% of annual interests counting back from October 14, 2007 to the date of discharged. The Group and the
defendant have appealed to the Supreme Court and the Supreme Court then ruled the lawsuit back to the
high court for reassessment in November 2015. The plaintiff appealed to the Supreme Court again but turn
to the high court, the lawsuit is still pending on the high court. As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, the
Group has estimated the cost of the lawsuit amounting to $6,370 thousand, including the compensation and
legal expenses, which is recognized as provision.

(10) Losses due to major disasters: None.
(11) Subsequent events: None.

(12) Others

The following is a summary statement of employee benefits, depreciation and amortization expensed by

function:
By function 2015 2014
Operating | Operating Operating | Operating

By item costs expenses Total costs expenses Total
Employee benefits

Salary 185,775 636,118 821,893 165,011 560,934 725,945

Labor and heaith insurance 15,177 41,510 56,687 13,689 31,266 44,955

Pension 8,703 22,194 30,897 7,849 16,549 24,798

Others 11,291 21,807 33,008 5,294 15,694 20,988
Depreciation 34,970 40,024 74,994 32,437 33,279 65,716
Amortization - - - - - -
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(13) Other Disclosures

(a) Information on significant transactions

The following is the information on significant transactions required by the "Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial
Reports by Securities Issuers” for the Group:

i)
ii)

iif)

iv)
v)
vi}

vii)

Loans extended to other parties: None.
Guarantees and endorsements for other parties: None.

Information regarding securities held at balance sheet date {(Investment in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures were
excluded): :

Unit: thousand dollars/thousand shares

Nature and name Relationship December 31, 2015 — | Maximum
Name of kolder with the security| Account name Number of Holding Market ] investment |Remarks
of security issuer shares Book value | percentage value in 2013
[The Company Stock: - [Financial assets carried at 1] 1,000 1L00% 1,000 1,000 -
|Alliance 11t Venture cost—non current
Capital Corp.

Accumulated holding amount of a single security in excess of $300 million or 20% of the paid-in capital: None.
Acquisition of real estate in excess of $300 million or 20% of the paid-in capital: None.
Disposal of real estate in excess of $300 million or 20% of the paid-in capital: None.

Sales to and purchases from related parties in excess of $100 million or 20% of the paid-in capital:

Unit: thousand dotlars

The status and reason for
deviation from arm's- Account / note receivable
Name of Transaction details length transaction ayable]
Company Counter-party Rclationship | Purchase / Percentage of | Credit Percentage of total |Remarks
Sale Amount | tetal purchases/ | peried | Unit price |Credit periodf Balamce accounts / botes
sales receivable {payable)
[The Company ILANNER |Subsidiary |Sales (1,137,123 @n %ﬁudays - - 368,687 36 o (Note 1)
|ELECTRONICS USA)
IINC.
[The Company L & S Lancom Subsidiary |Sales - (473,268 (11) 9450 days - 105,218 11 % (Motel)
IPlatform of
[Technology CO., Ltd
[The Company ILE! Technology ubsidiary |Sates (226,634 {5) %4180 days - 91,062 9 %Note 1)
Canada Lid, ls
Note 1:  The transactions within the Group were eliminated in the consolidated financial

viii) Receivabies from related parties in excess of $100 million or 20% of the paid-in capital:

ix)

Unit: thousand dollars

Name of related Balance of | Turnover Overdue amount Amounts received in |Allowances
Counter-party | Relationship |receivables from for bad
party related party rate Amount Action taken | subsequent period debts
[The Company LANNER Subsidiary 368,687 387 A - 276,373 -
FLECTRONICS (Note) (Unti] March 23, 2016)
USA, INC.
[The Company . & S Lancom Subsidiary 109,218 497 % - 109,038 -
[Platform of (Note) Until March 23, 2016)
[Technology CO.,
ILtd

Note: The transactions within the Group were eliminated in the consolidated financial statements.
Financial derivative instruments transactions:

In 2015, the consclidated entity recognized its net realized losses amounting to 2,258 thousand through the use of forward
foreign exchange contracts.
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%) Business relationships and significant intercompany transactions:

Unit: thousand dollars

Existing Transaction details
No.| Name of company Name of counter- | relationship[ Account name Amount Percentage of the
party with the ) total conselidated
counter- Trading terms revenue or total
party assets
0 {The Company ILANNER 1 Sales 1,137,123 [No significant differences 20.90%
ELECTRONICS USA,
[NC.
0 [The Company IL & S Lancom Platform 1 Sales 473,268 [No significant differences 8.70 %
jof Technology CO., Ltd.
0 [The Company ILE! Technology Canada 1 Sales 229,654 1180 days 4.22%
Ltd.
0 [The Company ILANNER 1 [Accounts receivable 368,687 [No significant differences 8.60 %
[ELECTRONICS USA,
INC.
0 [The Company IL & § Lancom Platform 1 lAccounts receivable 105,218 [No significant differences 2.55%
of Technology CO., Ltd
0 [The Company ILEl Technology Canada 1 |Accounts receivable 91,062 {180 days 2.12%
ILtd.

Note 1: Company numbering is as follows:
(1) Parent company is 0.
{2) Subsidiary starts from 1.
Note 2: The number of the relationship with the transaction counterparty represents the following:
(1) *1” represents downstream transactions.
(2) “2” represents upstream transactions.
(3) “3" represents sidestream transactjons.

{b) Information on investees:

The following is the information on investees for the years period ended December 31, 2015:

Unit: thousand dolfars/thousznd shacs

Name of fovestor Original cost Ending balance Maximum { Net income | Investment
investor investee Address Scope of business December 31, Decomber 31, Shares | Ratlo of | Book value [investment i of investee Income | Remarks
2018 2014 shares 2015 {losses)
[The Company |L AMMER ELECTRONICS [UsA [Trading of computer peripbieral 80,631 80,613 2350 1004 38,588 80,633 ERE 8178 (Nowe 1)
UsA, INC, CO, LTD. [equipinent
[The Company er El i Wl ancity ing 84,990 84,990 2,653 100 %4 496,816 24,990 106,494 106,494 | (Note1)
(Mauritiug) fnc.
[The Company ILE1 Technology Canada  [Canada [Trading of computer peripheral 56,936 56,936 2,000 100 %3 10,11 56,936 (654, (654)] (MNote 1}
fLtd. leqquipment
[Lannes Eloctronics ILancom Holding Co., Ltd.  |Semoa |investing 78,251 78,253 2,623 100 %4 512978 78,251 106,551 106,551 | (Noted)
Maugitius) Inc.

Note 1! Aforementioned amounts have been gliminated upon consolidation.
(c) Information on investment in Mainland China:

i)  Information on investment in Mainland China:

Unit: thousrd dollars

Name of fovotee Lesued Meitod of Curmulative Lovestment flaw duriny Camulative “Net lnkote ob | Direce /3ndirect] Madmum | lavestmonl | Book value
Scope of buizem i £l i imveriment | investment | fncosmr {loas)
9 Madland Chioa cagltat (Maiel} | from Taimanzsof [ Hemittance | Repatriaton | frum Taiwan nvad | fovestec bolding in2018 MNeiz3) {Nule3)
Junugry 1, 2015 amourt smoumt | Decrmber 31, 2048 percentape
hes Phatforrs of 105,283 [+}) 75,091 - - 75,942 156 RIS 1 JUEAESY 307 -
[Techuology OO, Lid fequipmen.

Note 11 The method of investment is divided into Us fellowing four categories:

(1) Remittance from third-region compani¢s to invest in Mainland China.

(2) Through the establishment of third-region companizs then i ing in Mainland China.

(3) Through trensferring the investment to third-region cxisting jes then 1 ing in Mainland China.

(4) Other metheds: EX: deleyated investments.
Note2: The financial statements of the investee are audiled by the auditors of the parent company. Investment gains (3osses) are accounted for by the equity method.
Note3: AR ioned have been eliminated upon lidatis

{Continued)



50

LANNER ELECTRONICS INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ii) Limitation on investment in Mainland China:
Accumulated investment | Investment (amount) Maximum investment

Company amount remitted from | approved by Investment [amount set by Investment

name Taiwan to Mainland Commission, Ministry of | Commission, Ministry of
China at the end of the Economic Affairs Economic Affairs
period

The 75,982 161,928 -

Company (Note 1)

Note 1: The Company was certified as an operations center by the Industrial Development
Bureau, Ministry of Economic Affairs, in approval letter No. 10420418550, and the
certification is valid from 2015 to 2018. The Company has no limitation on investment
in Mainland China during the abovementioned period.

iii) Significant transactions with investees in Mainland China:

Please refer to note 13(a) for the indirect and direct business transactions in China. All
transactions were eliminated upon consolidation.

{14) Segment information

(a) General information

(b)

The Group is mainly engaged in the manufacturing and selling of internet and communication
equipments. Management reviews the Company’s overall performance regularly to evaluate the
performance of each segment and allocate its resources accordingly. As the production procedure is
highly similar, the Group is identified as a sole operating segment.

Geographic information

In presenting information on the basis of geography, segment revenue is based on the geographical
location of customers and segment assets are based on the geographical location of the assets.

Geographic information

Revenue from external customers:

United States
China

Israel
Canada
Korea
Australia

Other countries

Total

2015 2014

$ 1,872,362 1,672,977
1,465,639 1,208,480
839,380 785,424

345,821 213,884

258,494 128,784

125,834 198,564

531.969 327,751

$ 5,439,499 4,535,864
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December 31, December 31,
Geographical information 2015 2014
Non-current assets:
Taiwan b 1,040,878 1,025,168
United States 81,814 81,632
China 50,074 9.081
Canada 3.358 1,098
Total 3 1,176,124 1,116,979

Non-current assets include property, plant and equipment, intangible assets, and other assets. They do
not include financial instruments and deferred income tax assets.

Information about major customers

2015 2014

Customer A $ 1,268,615 1,109,380







